1949

Parlan McFarlane v. Glenn Winters : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The plaintiff and respondent brought this action in the District Court of Sanpete County, State of Utah, to recover from the defendant and appellant the sum of \$2,299.25, together with interest thereon at the rate of 8% per annum from the 1st day of May, 1939, and plaintiff's costs. The Complaint alleges that on the 1st day of May, 1939, the plaintiff obtained a judgment against the defendant in the sum of \$1,381.40, together with interest in the sum of \$905.00.

and costs in the sum of \$17.80, making a total judgment of \$2,299.25, and that said sum had borne interest at the rate of 8% per annum from May 1, 1939 to May 1, 1947, when the Complaint was filed, and for that amount judgment was prayed. To that Complaint the defendant and appellant answered in his first defense that the plaintiff in the action was dead, and that he had been dead for more than twenty years prior to the commencement of the action. In his second defense he states that the action is barred by the provisions of Sections 104-2-21 and 104-2-38 of the Utah Code Annotated of 1943. For his third defense he pleads that on September 28, 1914 in case number 1050 between the same parties, judgment was entered in favor of the plaintiff and against the defendant for the sum of \$488.50, and that on September 7, 1922, an action was brought to renew the judgment and a judgment was entered by default in favor of the plaintiff and against the defendant for the sum of \$1380.40. He then pleads that that judgment was void for the reason that the defendant and appellant was never served with summons in said action, and that the court acquired no jurisdiction of the defendant; that the Sheriff's return of said Summons stated that he served it upon the defendant by leaving a copy of the Summons with Mrs. W. P. Winters at Price, Utah, at the usual place of abode of the defendant on September 15, 1922, and he alleges that Price, Carbon County, Utah, was not and never had been the usual place of abode of the defendant and appellant, but that his usual place of abode at that time was Sanpete County, State of Utah; that on May 1, 1939, the same action was brought in the court of Sanpete County for the

renewal of said judgment and wherein a judgment was obtained for the sum of \$2299.25, which the defendant alleges is a void judgment by reason that the former judgment heretofore referred to was void for lack of service of Summons, and the defendant alleges that an attempt to renew the judgment in the present action was void for the reason that the judgment which was attempted to be renewed was void and of no force and effect. The first judgment obtained for the sum of \$488.50 was the result of an automobile collision in 1914 on September 28th. This being true, it is shown that this is the fourth time the judgment has been sued upon for renewal. In the action the plaintiff prays for judgment in the sum of \$2299.25, together with interest at 8% from the 1st day of May 1939, and the defendant prays in his Answer that the plaintiff take nothing upon his said Complaint, but that the same be dismissed and that the defendant recover his costs.

STATEMENT OF FACT

The defendant and appellant appeals from the judgment rendered in favor of the plaintiff and respondent for the sum of \$2299.25, together with interest upon said sum, basing his claim principally on the allegations of his first defense to the effect that the plaintiff in the action is dead, and that he has been dead for more than twenty years prior to the commencement of the action.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS

Comes now the defendant and appellant and makes the following assignments of error upon which he will rely for a reversal of judgment appealed from in this cause:

1. The court erred in the computation of interest in the entry of said judgment, it being shown that the first judgment obtained against the defendant and appellant was the sum of \$488.50, and that when that judgment was renewed, it was renewed for the principal sum, plus interest on said sum at the legal rate during the time subsequent to the entry of the first judgment. From that time on the record shows that the interest has been compounded every time the judgment has been renewed at least four times since the entry of the first judgment, and that the greater portion of the judgment now entered is a judgment for interest compounded upon interest.

2. The Court erred in denying the defendant and appellant judgment in the trial of said action in the District Court and in entering judgment in favor of the plaintiff and respondent in said action.

3. The court erred in denying defendant's motion for new trial.

ARGUMENT

The evidence in this case shows in effect the following facts:

That the plaintiff obtained a judgment in 1914 against the defendant for the sum of \$488.50, no part of this judgment has ever been paid. If it were to run at straight 8% interest from the date of its entry to the present time, there would be accumulated in interest the sum of \$1328.72, add the principal sum of \$488.50 to that sum and it gives a total of \$1817.22. However, by compounding this interest every

8 years and charging interest upon interest, a judgment in this case, if there is a judgment in this case, has accumulated to the sum of approximately \$4,000.00. We say that such a procedure is not intended by our statute or justified thereby, and should not be permitted to be carried through in the manner applied by the court in this action.

We refer to Section 44-0-4 of the 1943 Annotated Code:

“Interest on Judgments. Any judgment rendered on a lawful contract shall conform thereto and shall bear the interest agreed upon by the parties which shall be specified in the judgment; *other judgments shall bear interest at the rate of 8% per annum.*” (Italics ours.)

It is just a little difficult to conceive how, out of this situation, one would attempt to compound his interest every eight years when the judgment was renewed when the only action taken on the matter was the renewal of the judgment. One would hardly expect to take a note for six years at a specified interest and then if the note were not paid before the statute of limitation run upon it, and it was necessary to renew it, that the party making the note would be expected in that renewal to have the interest figured and added to the principal and then make a new principal out of the combined sum on a renewal note and have the entire combination then bear interest again at the rate of 8% per annum. It would appear to us that such a computation of interest would be a usurious enterprise, and that fact is definitely established when it is shown, as hereinabove, that a straight 8% interest on the judgment obtained for the full time would render the

total amount due now at approximately \$1817.22, when the last judgment entered is for some \$4,000.00, twice and one-fourth the amount that the judgment should be.

We, therefore, submit that the court erred in rendering judgment, as in this case rendered, for the amount specified therein.

Assignment of error two goes to the important question in this case and that is as to whether or not the evidence supported the defendant's first defense that the plaintiff was dead and had been dead for more than twenty years prior to the commencement of the action.

We wish to refer to the testimony in the transcript on this particular point. Mrs. Anna C. McFarlane, a witness for the plaintiff testified that she was the former wife of the plaintiff in this action; that she last saw the plaintiff in 1921 (T. p. 11), and that she had never seen nor heard from him since that time (T. p. 12); that she had received no written communication from him, had received no telegrams, no telephone conversations and no other word of any kind since 1921 (T. p. 13; that she thinks he left home when he did leave because he was not contented, and because his family was a burden to him (T. p. 14); that if her husband were alive now, he would be 63 years old; that he was born in 1884 (T. p. 15). She stated that his mother received a card from him in 1941, a short time before his mother died; that she did not see the card, but she saw the envelope it was in; that she saw the handwriting on it, and it was the handwriting of her husband, Parlan McFarlane; that the envelope had a

California postmark on it (T. p. 18); that the envelope contained a Mother's Day card, and that it was sometime in May when she saw it (T. p. 19); that she did not see the card, but she saw the envelope; that the envelope was laying on the kitchen table in Mrs. Taylor's home in Manti (T. p. 20); that she did not see the card, but the envelope looked as though it had a card in it (T. p. 21); that she recognized the handwriting as that of her husband's (T. p. 22).

It will be noted that this envelope-on-the-table transaction was twenty years after Parlan McFarlane had been gone and no word had been received from him by his wife or family.

Wanda McFarlane Larsen testified that she was born October 18, 1916, and that she does not remember her father at all (T. p. 25).

William McFarlane testified that he was a brother of Parlan McFarlane; that he had never seen him since he left Manti in 1921 (T. p. 28); that the only thing he had ever heard of him was that Bruce Axelson and Wilford Fishneck had brought some communication to him regarding his brother, Parlan McFarlane from California; that the mother of these boys died in July of 1941; that at the time Parlan McFarlane did not attend the funeral, did not send any word concerning the matter, in fact no word was received from him at all (T. p. 29 and 30); that Wilford Fishneck had told him that he had seen his brother in California in 1925, and that Ezra Madson from Ephraim has seen Parlan McFarlane in California in 1929 (T. p. 31). At that time he was running a paint shop and that he requested that no word be given his

family about him; that he, William McFarlane, had been furnishing money to renew the judgments on this particular lawsuit ever since the first judgment was entered in favor of his brother, and that he had done so without any request or suggestion from his brother, the plaintiff, whatsoever (T. p. 32); that he had in like manner renewed the judgment at least three times and perhaps four (T. p. 33). He testified that he had seen a card sent to his mother on Mother's Day by his brother Parlan McFarlane; that he identified the card by the handwriting on the envelope addressed to his mother (T. p. 35); that he took care of his mother's correspondence (T. p. 36). He stated that the envelope was dated, but the card was not. There was nothing on the card; that he does not know where the card is (T. p. 37); that the address on the envelope was in his brother's handwriting; that he could tell his brother's handwriting because, as he said, "I can write and you can tell my handwriting anytime, and I can tell a McFarlane handwriting." That there was some checks in the possession of his wife signed by him, but no comparison of those checks were made. (T. p. 38). That it was written in indelible pencil, and that the only thing he noticed about it was a postmark from California (T. p. 39).

Wilford Frischnecht, a witness for the plaintiff testified that he saw Parlan McFarlane in Oakland, California in 1925 (T. p. 65).

Bruce Axelson testified that he saw Parlan McFarlane in San Francisco in 1928 or 1929 (A. p. 66); that it was on Howard Street between 3rd or 4th; that he went down there to get a bus on their way to Los Angeles, but he did not do much

talking to him, but that his brother did. He said he was going on a paint job out at Palo Alto (T. p. 67); that on Cross Examination, the witness testified that he knew Parlan McFarlane as a young boy, but admitted that he left Manti when the witness was but 8 years of age; that the last time he talked to him he asked if his mother was still alive and asked how Bill was; that he first denied being Parlan McFarlane, but after talking to him a little while he asked if his mother was still alive, but he never stated who his mother was to whom he was referring (T. p. 72).

A Louise Cox, a witness for the plaintiff, testified that she thought she saw Parlan McFarlane last summer in Provo (T. p. 73); that she and her daughter were walking up the street in Provo and they saw a man whom they thought was Parlan McFarlane; that he had cotton on his eye and dark glasses over the cotton, one eye being bandaged (T. p. 82 and 83). That he did not recognize them, and the witness testified that she thought it was because he did not want to recognize them (T. p. 83 and 84).

As we view the testimony, the only testimony there is of Parlan McFarlane being in existence within the statutory period of the last eight years, is the fact, that certain people saw an envelope laying on the table in his mother's home that had a card on it that had no handwriting whatsoever; that it had an address to his mother with a California postmark on it, and the testimony of this Mrs. Cox who says she saw him in Provo; that is the only testimony that seems to bring us within the pervuew of the statutory period of seven years after which a person is presumed to be dead, and we do not believe that

the testimony is sufficient upon which to base a judgment, certainly it would seem strange if the man Mrs. Cox saw in Provo was him, that no relative in Utah saw him at that time, and though she testified that the man was wearing working clothes, indicating that he was employed in or around about Provo, and then this mysterious card that these people saw but no one could produce, although it must be remembered that William McFarlane knew about this judgment and had paid the costs of those renewals some three times up to that time, and yet he did not feel that the card was of any importance or significance in establishing that his brother was still alive. We do not believe that such evidence would supply the burden of proof required of the plaintiff to support a judgment in an action brought for that purpose.

In opposition to this slight evidence, we have the evidence of the defendant, Glenn Winters, who testified that he had seen Parlan McFarlane around the streets in Mount Pleasant; that he was at the first trial of the case and saw him at that time; that he had made an effort to locate Parlan McFarlane prior to the last trial of this action (T. p. 42); that he had inquired of Will McFarlane and Mrs. McFarlane (Parlan McFarlane's wife); that his wife had told him that she had last heard from him in Salt Lake City; that he contacted the Police Department of Salt Lake City, but that they could not find him; that he had the bookkeeper of the Utah Power & Light Company search their records back 25 to 26 years and they could find nothing concerning Parlan McFarlane; that he had the telephone directory of Salt Lake City and the City Directory searched (T. p. 43), also, the register of Vital Statistics; that

he had made inquiries in San Francisco and Ely, Nevada, and other places; that he had directed letters be sent to practically every County Seat west of Mississippi River, all that they could find, and that they had written the Peace Officers in all of those cities requesting that a search be made for him, all of which was of no avail (T. p. 44); that he had contacted the Eastman Kodak people of San Francisco for the reason that Parlan McFarlane was in the photography business in Mount Pleasant; that of all the inquiries he made, he received back only two replies which were marked Exhibits "A" and "B" and are part of the record; that he had a search made through the United Mine Workers of America through their Welfare Department, but could find no trace of him (T. p. 46); that he has three cousins in San Francisco, and he had them make a search of San Francisco to see if they could locate him, and they could find no trace of him in San Francisco T. p. 47).

We, therefore, submit that the evidence in this case shows that Parlan McFarlane, plaintiff, is, as a matter of law, dead, and that he did not authorize any one nor did anyone have any right to bring this action on his behalf.

Concerning the legal proposition that absence creates a presumption of death, we refer to the following authorities:

17 Corpus Juris, 1166, which reads as follows:

"The presumption of the continuance of life is overcome or displaced by the presumption of death which arises from the unexplained absence from the person from his last or usual place of residence for a sufficiently long period of time without having been heard of during such period . . . The presumption of death from unexplained absence is not, however,

a presumption of law, but a mixed presumption of law and fact which may be rebutted, and it will not be indulged where the circumstances of the case are such to account for the absence of the person without assuming his death, and it has been held that he who relies upon an unexplained absence must not only prove it, but must also produce evidence to justify the inference that death is the probable reason why nothing is known about the missing person."

Concerning the length of absence, we quote from 17 Corp, Juris 1167:

"At common law the rule was that a presumption of death arose from an unexplained absence of seven years, and this is the rule which prevails in nearly all jurisdictions, although in a few jurisdictions a shorter period has been prescribed by statute."

Quoting now from Jones Commentaries of Evidence Vol. 1, page 473, we have the following:

"It is thus stated in the Massachusetts case, that if a man leaves his home and goes into parts unknown and remains unheard from for the space of 7 years, the law authorizes to those that remain, the presumption of fact that he is dead, but it does not authorize him to presume therefore that any one of those remaining in the place which he left has died."

Again on page 476, we have the following:

"It need hardly be added that this presumption of death from absence is not a conclusive presumption. It is one of fact, and is subject to be controlled by the facts of the case. It is one which varies in weight according to the circumstances. The presumption may be rebutted in the same manner as any other presumption of fact by proof of circumstances which are inconsistent with its existence as a logical conclusion."

Of course, there is nothing in this case that will meet such a situation.

Again on page 477 of the same volume:

"Evidence having been adduced sufficient to create a presumption of death from absence of the missing person for seven years or more, unaccompanied by circumstances accounting for such absence on any hypothesis other than death, the burden of rebutting such presumption devolves upon the party asserting the continuance of life . . . but it is not rebuttable on mere rumor, it must be evidence of a tangible nature such as a declaration of an intention to leave the home for some good reason . . . It may be that if the evidence here offered had been admitted (a general report among the absentee's friends that he was living) the cross examination would have shown it to be mere vague rumor, and if so, unworthy of credit, but if there was such report and intelligence as to the absent man among his friends and former acquaintances as was offered to be shown, the weight to be given it was for the jury."

In the case of *St. Martin vs. Hendershott*, an Oregon case, 160 Pac. 373 at page 374:

"Isaac Arquette, so far as known, had no lineal descendants, and since he has not been heard from by his acquaintances or any member of his family for more than seven years, he is therefore presumed to be dead."

In the case of *American National Insurance Company vs. Hattie Hicks*, 75 A.L.R. 623, quoting from the syllabus, we have the following:

"Where, while a life insurance policy was in force, the insured, whose family relations were happy and who had no known enemies disappeared, and was not

again heard from, the trial court in an action brought after the expiration of seven years has created a presumption of death is warranted in finding that the death occurred before the policy had lapsed by reason of non-payment of premiums."

And then quoting from the decision at page 629, we have the following:

"The fact that death after an absence of seven years, successively, by a person is fixed by the statute when the fact of absence is established as was done in this case, but the time of death of such individual must be determined by the jury or by the court in trying the case without the intervention of a jury." *Soverign Camp W. O. W. vs. Boden*, 117 Texas 229; 1 SW (2nd) 256; 61 AIR 682.

In the case of *Kansas City Life Insurance Company vs. Dora Marshall*, 61 A.L.R. 1321, quoting from the syllabus, we have the following:

"The death of an unheard of absentee may likely be presumed from evidence of facts and circumstances other than those showing exposure to danger which probably resulted or might probably have resulted in his death without regard to the duration of the absence, and that some time before the expiration of the seven year period."

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