1948

# Parlan McFarlane v. Glenn Winters : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

88 Pac. 2nd P. 647 at P. 650 . .	

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

- - - - -  
PARLAN McFARLANE, also known  
as PARLANE McFARLAND,

Plaintiff and  
Respondent,

)  
)  
)  
) CASE NO.

vs

) 7201

GLENN WINTERS,

)  
Defendant and  
Appellant.  
)  
- - - - -

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

STATEMENT

Respondent controverts the facts as  
stated in Appellant's brief for the follow-  
ing reasons:

FIRST: There is no issue in this  
case involving interest raised by the  
pleadings, or otherwise, or at all.

(q.v) Complaint, Judgment Roll page

1-3; Answer, Judgment Roll page 7-9; Reply, Judgment Roll page 10-12; Findings of Fact, Judgment Roll page 14-15; Judgment, Judgment Roll page 16.

See Bill of Exceptions, Reporter's Transcript.

Tr. 2 MR. LARSON: I think there is only, Judge Woolley tells me, Your Honor, that there is only one issue here and that is whether Parlan McFarlane, the plaintiff, is dead. Is that correct?

MR. WOOLLEY: Yes, but that takes various aspects and has various consequences.

MR. LARSON: Yes, it does.

MR. WOOLLEY: If there is no plaintiff, there is no case.

Tr. 4 THE COURT: What I believe, Judge Woolley, that the burden is with the

defendant to proceed on the affirmative allegation that the plaintiff is dead.

Tr. 5 MR. WOOLLEY: I do, if the Court please. I make a motion now that the counsel for the plaintiff be required to show by what authority he appears for the person named as Parlan McFarlane, the plaintiff in this action. I am willing to take counsel's statement. I don't ask that he be sworn. If he has any authority from Parlan McFarlane to maintain this suit, I will take his word for it.

MR. LARSON: I will say that he is maintaining this suit and I am the attorney for him, Your Honor, and I have been for twenty years or more, in this particular action.

THE COURT: Does that satisfy you?

MR. WOOLLEY: Not quite, Your Honor, I know that Mr. Larson was attorney for Parlan McFarlane when the action was commenced against Glenn Winters in 1913 or '14, and I know that he has renewed the judgment obtained in that year from time to time appearing as attorney for that plaintiff. I don't know by what authority he maintains the present action. In other words, my point is this, I question and doubt that he has received any communication from Parlan McFarlane in the last ten years which would authorize him to represent him in prosecuting this lawsuit.

Tr. 6 THE COURT: Well, Mr. Larson, what was the last arrangement you had with



your client?

Tr. 6-7 MR. LARSON: My arrangement, if you want to know, Your Honor, was this. I was retained in this case by Parlan McFarlane on a contingent basis and I have an interest in this judgment and our relations have been the same since we sued Glen Winters and his father, and I think Sam King was the attorney then and we got a judgment in the lower court, but the Supreme Court reversed the case and it is an outstanding case on the issue for the reason that Glen Winters in the action took the attitude that he was not the agent of his father W. P. Winters and in this particular state they don't hold the owner of a car liable when it is driven by some other person unless that person

is the agent of the owner and is on the business of the owner. Now a great majority of states don't hold to that rule but that is the ruling in Utah and it was established in the case of Parlan McFarlane vs. W. P. Winters and Glen Winters and I have been his attorney from that time on and I am interested in the case just as much as he is, 50 per cent contingent fee, and he has left this matter with me on a contingent basis because he knew I was interested as well as he. The judgment to begin with against Glen Winters was only about \$488 and a few cents maybe, but it has been drawing interest. We have issued executions and we have had him served and renewed the judg-

ment from time to time through the course of the years and we are now again seeking to renew it, and these people having put up the affirmative defense that Glen Winters, no, that Parlan McFarlane is dead, it is up to them to prove that he is dead and we will show him what the presumptions are relative to life and relative to death. The law is clear on it.

Tr. 8        MRS. ANNA C. McFARLANE, called as a witness by and on behalf of the defendant, was sworn and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Woolley

Tr. 11    Q you have handed me, Mrs. McFarlane a check dated July 9, 1921 \*\*\* signed by Anna C. McFarlane.

A yes. That's right.

Q Apparently indorsed on the back "Parlane McFarlane," and then the other indorsement.

A Yes.

Q You have handed me another check dated August 14, 1921 \*\*\* pay to the order of Parlan (Tr. 12) McFarlane, \$15.00 and signed by Anna C. McFarlane and indorsed on the back by Parlan McFarlane.

A Yes.

Tr. 13 Q Did he tell you where he was going when he left, at that time? (Meaning her husband.)

A No, he didn't tell me. I think he ran away from his creditors, mainly.

Tr. 14 Q Do you know whether he (meaning the plaintiff) was contented or discontented in his family life or not?

A I don't know whether he was clear contented. I think we was kind of a burden to him.

Tr. 15 Q How old would he be now?

A 63.

Q 63 years ago last October, is that right?

A That's right.

Q And he was younger than you.

A yes.

Q How much?

Tr. 16 CROSS EXAMINATION By Mr. Larson:

Tr. 17 Q You know whether the mother, your husband's mother is dead?

A Yes, she is dead.

Q When did she die?

Tr. 18 A She died in '41.

Q In '41. Do you know whether she was ever in communication with her son?

A Why, I know that she got a card from him.

Q When was that?

A As near as I remember, it was a short time before she died.

Q Did you see that card?

A I saw the envelope it was in.

Q Did you see the handwriting on it?

A I did.

Q Did you know the handwriting?

A I certainly did.

Q And would you say that was the handwriting of your husband, Parlan McFarlane?

A Yes, sir.

Q A short time before she died.

When did she die?

A July 26, 1941.

Q July 26, 1941. You happen to re-

member ~~where~~ that card came from.

That envelope that had his handwriting on it?

A Yes. It had a California postmark, but I don't remember the town.

Tr. 19 McFarlane's mother said, "Do you recognize the handwriting," and I said I certainly did.

Tr. 27 WM. McFARLANE, called as a witness by and on behalf of the plaintiff, was sworn and testified as follows: (I Think the word plaintiff here should be defendant.)

Tr. 27 DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Woolley:

Tr. 27 Q When did you last see him? (Meaning the plaintiff.)

A I saw him the year after he left here. He was in Salt Lake City. I saw him in Salt Lake a year after he left Manti.

Tr. 29 Q Has anybody else brought word to you from him or purported to do so?

A Yes.

Q Who?

A Bruce Axelson.

Q Did your mother die in July of 1941?

A 26th of July 1941.

Tr. 30 Q Did you ever know of an address that he had in San Francisco, California?

A Nothing more than in California.

Q You had heard through someone else, had you, that he was in California?

Tr. 31 A Yes.

Q Wilford Frischknecht told you that he had seen him down there in 1925, didn 't he, or did he?



A Yes. He told me he had seen him (meaning the plaintiff) while he was on his mission.

Q And Bruce Axelson told you that he had seen him sometime after that.

A Yes.

Q That is all you know about him, isn't it, or is it?

A No. \*\*\* He said they had seen Parlan McFarlane conducting a paint shop; this was 1929. They were asked to find out what they could about the family but not to give address, which they didn't do.

Tr. 32 Q Tell us now, Will, whether you have been putting up the money to maintain this law suit.

A I have. Mr. Larson and myself have.

Q You have been putting up the money.

A Yes.

Q You put up the money. Was that because of your interest in his wife?

A Yes.

Q You wanted to keep the judgment alive so she could eventually get it. Is that right?

A Yes.

Tr. 34 CROSS EXAMINATION by Mr. Larson:

Tr. 35 Q Do you know your brother's handwriting?

A Yes.

Q And have you known it for many years?

A Yes.

Q And have you ever seen any correspondence with his handwriting on it in recent years?

A Yes, sir.

Q Where?

A I saw it -- I saw the card that he sent to mother for Mother's Day.

Q And you saw the handwriting on the envelope.

A Yes.

Tr. 35 Q And did you know it was the handwriting of your brother? Do you know that?

A Yes, sir.

Q And when was that?

Tr. 36 A It was just before mother died. It was Mother's day.

Q 1941.

A Yes, sir.

Tr. 36 REDIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr.

Woolley:

Tr. 38 Q That address on there, you think

was in your brother's handwriting,  
is that right?

A Yes, sir; I know it was.

Tr. 40 GLEN WINTERS, called as a witness in his own behalf, was sworn and testified as follows:

Tr. 40 DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Woolley:

Tr. 42 Q I suppose you were here at the trial of the case.

A Yes, sir.

Q And I suppose you saw him here at that time. (Meaning the plaintiff.)

A Yes, sir.

Q At the time he got the judgment.

A Yes, sir.

Q Have you ever seen him since that time?

Tr. 42 A Not that I know of.

Q Have you made any effort since

this action was commenced to find him?

A Well, I --.

Tr. 42 Q All right. What have you done in that respect? Tell the court what inquiries you made.

A I went to Salt Lake City, and I got in communication with some of the policemen up there I knew.

Q First, let me ask you this. Did you begin that inquiry before you talked to me about the case?

Tr. 43 A No.

Q What was the first thing you did after you talked with me? Didn't I send you down to see Mrs. McFarlane?

A I think the first thing I did after I told you about the case, you asked me to go and see Bill McFarlane and Mrs. McFarlane.

Q Those are the two people who just testified.

A Yes.

Tr. 45 Q I show this paper which has been marked Plaintiff's Exhibit A and ask you if that is a letter that you referred to in your testimony.

A Yes. This is the one that she wrote, and wrote in my name, and <sup>I</sup> signed it, but there were a lot of them and I signed them and sent them out.

Tr. 50 Q When did you begin to make this search that you talk about?

A Well, I don't know that that would be necessary.

Q Just a minute, I didn't ask what you knew, I asked when you began making your search.

A When?

Q Yes.

A When I decided to come into court.

Tr. 51 Q That is then after this action was commenced when he told you to go to work and a make a search.

A Yes.

Q And up to that time you had not made any search, had you?

A I didn't even know the man was missing.

Q I just want to know this, whether you had made any search before you communicated with Mr. Woolley.

A No.

Tr. 52 Q All right. It was before the action was commenced against you this last time or shortly thereafter. Can you answer that?

A I came down after I had been ser-

ved in Castle Gate to see Mr. Woolley, and when I talked to Mr. Woolley, he didn't concur with an attorney that I had talked to on the day I was served in Castle Gate. That attorney was Henry Ruggeri.

MR. LARSON: No objection on this to the admission of B.

Tr. 56      CROSS EXAMINATION by Mr. Larson:

Q Now, you have told us about what you have done to try to find him, haven't you. (Meaning the plaintiff.)

A Yes.

Q You don't pretend to know whether he is dead or whether he is alive, of your own knowledge, do you?

A He sure disappeared.

Tr. 64      WILFORD FRISCHKNECHT, called as  
a witness by and on behalf of the



plaintiff, was sworn and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Larson:

Tr. 64 Q Now, did you ever see him any place after he left Manti? (Meaning the plaintiff.)

A Yes.

Q Where did you see him?

A I saw him in Salt Lake, and I will not say whether it was 1922 or 1923. I saw him at that time at Beck's Hot Springs.

Tr. 65 Q Did you ever see him (meaning the plaintiff) at a later date?

A Yes, I saw him in Oakland, California in 1925.

Q Under what circumstances and where did you see him at that time?

A I was there on a mission, and it

was in the Church on McArthur Street; at that time, I think it was Adams Street, and has been changed to McArthur street, and he was sitting in the center of the hall. I was a district president in the Bay area, and I came down the aisle to count the attendance, and he got up from the center of the hall and passed through the people to the aisle and came out to talk to me.

Q And you talked to him on that occasion.

A Yes.

Q That was in 1925.

A It was in, I think, May. Either May or June.

Tr. 65      BRUCE AXELSON, called as a witness by and on behalf of the plain-

tiff, was sworn and testified as follows:

Tr. 65 DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Larson:

Tr. 66 Q About what time did you see him  
(meaning the plaintiff) in San Francisco?

A Well, the first time I saw him, I went to San Francisco in the last part of 1928, so I would say it was the first part of 1929 that I saw Parlane McFarlane on Third and Jessie streets.

Q Did you talk to him?

A Yes, sir. And my brother was also with me.

Q Did you see Parlane McFarlane after that?

Tr. 67 A Yes, sir.

Q Where did you see him then?

A On Howard Street between Third and Fourth, San Francisco. I didn't do much talking to him. My brother talked to him. But he said (meaning the plaintiff) he was going on a paint job out at Palo Alto.

Q Have you ever seen him since then?  
(Meaning the plaintiff.)

A Yes; I saw him one more time after that, and I distinctly remember the time because it was a year after my brother's death, (Tr. 68) in 1937.

Tr. 68 Q Where did you see him at that time?

A I saw him on the corner of Third and Howard Streets.

Q In San Francisco, California.

A Yes, San Francisco.

Q Did you talk with him at that time?

A Yes.

Tr. 69 Q Did you recognize him, (meaning the plaintiff) when you first saw him?

A Yes, we turned the corner of Market Street and Jessie Street in between Mission and Market, and as we went along down the street, my brother said "do you recognize this man," and I said it is Parlan McFarlane. He has lost a lot of weight.

Q When you saw him (meaning the plaintiff) in 1937. How did he look?

A He was still thin.

Q What was he doing?

Tr. 70 A He was drunk, if I have to tell you.

Tr. 71 Q He was leaning against a lamp post, drunk.

A Yes, sir.

Q Was he dressed well?

A Not too well; no, sir. He had a pair of painter's overalls on.

Q Did you talk to him?

A Yes, sir.

Q What did you talk to him about that time?

A I talked to him, I went up, and I said, hello, Parley, and he said his name wasn't Parley. I said, aren't you Parlan McFarlane, and he said, no. My name is Mac. I am from the Windy City.

Tr. 72 Q And the last time you talked to him, you knew he was Parlan McFarlane. You knew that.

A Yes, sir; I did. He finally admitted it the last time I talked to him. He asked me if his mother was

still living, and he asked me how Bill was; that was his brother, and I told him that Bill was running the theatre.

Q And the last time you talked to him, you knew he was Parlan McFarlane. You knew that.

A Yes, sir; I did.

Tr. 72 LOUISE COX, called as a witness by and on behalf of the plaintiff, was sworn and testified as follows:

Tr. 72 DIRECT EXAMINATION by Mr. Larson:

Tr. 73 Q And have you seen him recently? Parlan McFarlane.

A I think I seen him last summer in Provo on Main Street between Kress' and Firmage's stores. My daughter and I were together, and there was a man just ahead of us about three

feet, and something was said, and I burst out laughing and this man turned around and looked me right in the Tr. 74 face, and he, as soon as he seen me, took off just as fast as he could walk. My daughter said, "mother, that man recognized you." I said, "that is Jenny McFarlane's father." I was so positive that it was him because I had known him all my life and he knows me. He took the picture of my first three children up here in this little store.

Tr. 75 Q He apparently was trying to avoid you, would you say?

A I am positive that man knew me and that was what he was trying to do.

Q It is your opinion that it was Parlan McFarlane.



A that will always be my opinion until I am thoroughly convinced that it wasn't.

Tr. 75 CROSS EXAMINATION by Mr. Woolley:

Tr. 76 Q How was he dressed?

A He had a pair of bib overalls on, and I particularly noticed his walk.

Q Now wait a minute. Let's stay with the incident a little longer.

Tr. 77 A I want to explain the walk.

Q No, we will get along with that after a while. Was anybody walking in company with him?

A No one at all. He was all alone. It was about two o'clock in the afternoon.

Tr. 79 Q Well, Parlan was about your age.

A Yes.

Q Went through grade school together

and you had not seen him from 1916 until July or August of 1947, is that right?

A No, I hadn't seen him.

Tr. 80 Q And how far ahead of you was he when you laughed and he turned?

A Oh, he wasn't over about three feet.

Tr. 81 Q And then it was that you said your daughter said he recognized you.

A Not just the minute he turned and looked at me, my daughter said "Mama, that man knows you." Just as soon as he started walking fast, my daughter said, "Mama, that man recognizes you." I said immediately, "That is Jennie McFarlane's father right there." He wasn't four feet ahead of us.

Tr. 84 Q You think he didn't want to be rec-

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